
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
****COMMISSIONER’S MEETING ROOM – GROUND FLOOR**** 

MONTICELLO, GEORGIA 
April 3, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page. 

 

I. Call to Order (6:00 p.m.)                                  

NAME PRESENT ABSENT LATE ARRIVED 

DISTRICT 1 – SHEILA G. JONES, VICE-CHAIR     
DISTRICT 2 – BRUCE HENRY     

DISTRICT 3 – DON JERNIGAN, CHAIR     

DISTRICT 4 – GERALD STUNKEL      

DISTRICT 5  - STEVEN LEDFORD     

  

 II.     Pledge of Allegiance –       

III.    Invocation – District 2 
         

 IV.    Approval of Agenda 
            

 V.      Consent Agenda –  
1.  Approval of Minutes: 

• February 27, 2023 – Work Session Minutes 
• March 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
2.   Check Register – Check #’s     67164 - 67407 
  

VI.   Public Hearing  
Public Hearings are conducted to allow public comments on specific advertised issues such as rezoning, 
ordinances, policy development and other legislative actions to be considered by the County 
Commissioners.  Following the public hearing, the Board of Commissioners will take action on each 
item presented below.  

 
 

Presentation/Delegations allows scheduled speakers to address the Commission for not more than ten 
(10) minutes on specific topics or for recognition of citizens, county employees or other events by the 
Commissioners.  
  
Jennifer Lassen, Executive Director – Monticello/Jasper County Chamber of Commerce 

 
 
 
The Citizens Comments section of the Agenda allows citizens who sign up to address the Commission 
for not more than three (3) minutes on specific topics.   The County Attorney will keep time.  Please  
be courteous of the 3 minute time limit. Comments noted from citizens via the Jasper County FB Page. 

VIX. County Commissioner Items  

VIII. Citizens Comments 

VII. Presentations/Delegations 



XIII. Executive Session 
 

 
X.   Regular Agenda  

 
Business Items: 

1. Jasper County Public Facilities Authority – Board Appointments  
2. NEGRC Area on Aging 2023 American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Contract – Senior Center 
3. Senior Center 2009 Ford E-350 Van Replacement Vehicle 
4. Participation Forms for the New National Opioid Settlements 
5. Recreation Department Football Fields Discussion 
6. Landfill Operations Discussion 
7. Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings As Needed 

 

XI.   County Attorney Items 

XII.   County Manager Update 

 
 
 

Consultation with County attorney to discuss pending or potential litigation as provided by O.C.G.A.  
§50-14-2(1); Discussion of the future acquisition of real estate as provided by O.C.G.A. §50-14-3(4); 
and discussion on employment, compensation, or periodic evaluation of county employees as provided 
in O.C.G.A. § 50-14-3(6)  

 

XIV. Adjournment  



Consent Agenda – Item 1: 

 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:  April 3, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Minutes 
 
Summary: 
 
 
Minutes have been completed for the Jasper County Board of Commissioners: 

 
• February 27, 2023 – Work Session Minutes 
• March 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
 

Background: 
 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve minutes for:  
 

• February 27, 2023 – Work Session Minutes 
• March 6, 2023 - Regular Meeting Minutes 
  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Work Session Minutes: February 27, 2023 
 

  Jasper County Board of Commissioners  
February 27, 2023 

Work Session Minutes 
6:00 P.M. 

 

Chairman Jernigan called the Work Session to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Work Session: 
Mr. Ed Westbrook presented to information to the board for consideration regarding the Long Term 
Disaster Recovery Team. There is not anything currently set up to help residents in case of a disaster.  
The group can find specific help for citizens, negotiating on residents’ behalf.  They will assist in meeting 
unmet needs. They will: 

• Look at the needs of each household 
• Identify groups that can help 
• Receive monetary donations to assist the households and raise money if possible 
• Help residents with seeking guidance (spiritual and financial) 
• Organize as a 501(c)3 and follow its own set of by-laws. 

 
The committee members will be made of representatives from the county. They will serve as volunteers 
with no compensation. There will be no more than 9 voting members. They will need a proclamation 
from the Board of Commissioners recognizing this group. There is already a checking account open. Mr. 
Westbrook stated that he will not serve on the board.  
 
Commissioner Ledford suggested that if people who are willing to serve have been identified we should 
ask that they are present at the March 6th meeting.  
 
Chairman Jernigan declared the Work Session closed at 6:31 p.m. 
  

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon S. Robinson, Clerk 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

        
   Jasper County Board of Commissioners 

March 6, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

6:00 P.M. 
 
Chairman Henry called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Bruce Henry; Gerald Stunkel; Don Jernigan, Chairman; Sheila Jones, Vice-Chairman; 
and Steven Ledford.  
 
Staff: Mike Benton, County Manager, Larissa Ruark, Chief Accounting Officer, and Adam Nelson, with 
Fleming Nelson Attorney Group 

Pledge of Allegiance: 
Invocation:  Commissioner Sheila Jones, District 1. 
 
Agenda Approval:  Commissioner Henry motioned to add the purchase of the land for the Food Bank to the 
agenda. Chairman Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Commissioner Ledford seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Consent Agenda:  
Commissioner Ledford motion to approve the minutes for:     

• February 6, 2023- Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Jones motioned to approve Check #s 66881-67163. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, 
passed unanimously.  
 
Public Hearings:  Commissioner Ledford motioned to go into Public Hearing at 6:05 p.m. Commissioner Jones 
seconded the motion, passed unanimously.    

1. A public hearing will be held on a Final Plat for Lakeview Estates, Phase 2, located off of Lloyd Street,  
Map & Parcel 031A 035. The request is to finalize the approved Preliminary Plat for a total of 10 lots 
on 21.98 acres. 

No one stood in favor or opposition.  

2. A Public Hearing will be held for Amendments to Part II, Code of Ordinances which include: Chapter 
105 – Development Standards & Regulations, Sec. 105-28. – General definitions; Section 105-162 – 
Conservation Subdivision Design, subsection 3.C; and Chapter 119 – Zoning, Sec. 119-48 
Conventional zoning districts; Sec. 119-95 Relationship between land use and zoning districts; Sec. 
119-244 Development Standards; Sec. 119-269 Table of Permitted Uses; Sec. 119-196 R-2 Single-
Family Residential District, Low Intensity; Sec. 119-197 R-1 Single-Family Residential District, 
Medium Density; Sec. 119-198 RL Residential Lake Districts; Sec. 119-199 V-P Village Plan Mixed-
Use Residential District; Division 6 V-P Village Plan Mixed Use District Development Standards 
including Sec. 119-287 through Sec. 119-302; Sec. 119-347 Application of parking requirements; Sec. 
119-348 Minimum requirements for off-street parking. 

 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

P & Z Director Judy Johnson read the new ordinance into the record (See attached.)  
 
In Favor: 

• Mary Patrick (Monticello)- Ms. Patrick begin by saying that she was against smaller lots. 
Chairman Jernigan advised Ms. Patrick that now is the time to speak if you are in favor of the 
ordinance amendment.  

• Justin Owen (Highway 11 North, Chairman of P & Z Board)- Mr. Owens urged the board to accept 
the recommendation from the Planning & Zoning Board.    

• Cathy Benson (Monticello)- Feel the ordinance should be approved as presented.  
• John Henderson (Herd’s Creek Road)- Mr. Henderson strongly ask and recommend that the 

ordinance is approved as presented. It’s a good compromise 
• James Belcher (Hillsboro)- Would like to recommend that the ordinance is accepted because it is 

a good compromise.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to close the Public Hearing at 6:23 p.m. Commissioner Jones seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Presentations/Delegations-  

• Long Term Recovery Group Discussion – Ed Westbrook – Mr. Ed Westbrook presented to the board the 
need for Long Term Recovery Group. The group will assist in any disaster that a resident may experience. 
This will allow us to receive major donations during disasters as well. The group will have its own bi-
laws and operate under a 501(c)3. There will be no more than 9 voting members. The Sheriff, Mr. 
Westbrook, and the Fire Chief will serve as advisors but not members of the board. Eight volunteers have 
been identified: 

o Louise Venables  
o Josesph Slicker 
o Londa Champion 
o Amy Stelzer 

 
• Long Term Recovery Group Proclamation- Commissioner Ledford motioned to approve the Chairman 

to sign the proclamation to create the Long Term Recovery Group. Commissioner Henry seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  

 
Citizens Comments: 

• Jerry Wynn (Falcon Circle) - Spoke about things that will be needed if R2 is allowed.  
• Sandra Carter (Monticello) - Ms. Carter talked about the Day of Kindness and thanked those who 

participated.  
• Johnathan Fuss- Mr. Fuss thanked the county manager and stated that the board should use logic and 

reason. He also suggested that the board work together as one.  
• Catherine Alexander (Hillsboro) - Ms. Alexander expressed all the things she had to do in order to be 

at the meeting.  
• Jason Bunn (Bailey Road) – Mr. Bunn asked Commissioner Stunkel and Commissioner Jernigan to 

step down.  
• Cathy Benson (Lakeshore Drive) – Ms. Benson stated that she is against anything with smaller lots.   
• Linda Rudolph (Concord Road) – Ms. Rudolph ask the board to keep their promised to the taxpayers 
• Jason Hawkins (Thompson Road) –Mr. Hawkins stated that he feels like enough people have come 

forward against the R2 zoning.  
• Mary Patrick (Monticello) – Ms. Patrick made mention about boards and the Commissioners that serve 

on the boards.  
• James Belcher (Hillsboro) –Mr. Belcher stated that we need to come together as a county to create 

smart growth.  
• Wayne Cason (Seven Island Road) – Mr. Cason encouraged citizens to not sit on their hands and get 

involved.  



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

• Chris Florence (Bailey Road) – Mr. Florence stated that he hopes the board will accept the proposal 
from the P&Z board. 
 

County Commissioner’s Items 
Commissioner Ledford- None 
Commissioner Stunkel- Commissioner Stunkel spoke about all of the accusations against him regarding R2 
zoning. He reminded the crowd that when he ran for his seat he ran on the premise of the need for more housing 
options in Jasper County. He referenced his Commissioner’s Facebook page where the post is still visible. He 
reminded the crowd that he did not have a legal reason to make the county aware that he was pursuing his Real 
Estate license.  
Commissioner Jernigan- Commissioner Jernigan stated that to say that there is collusion going on is not true. 
He speaks to all of the commissioners individually all the time. We have to learn to get together and 
compromise.  
 
Commissioner Jones- Commissioner Jones stated that the open records was a shock to her. She agrees that 
each district should have people appointed to all boards. She would love for all of us to come together as a 
county as a whole.  
  
Chairman Henry- Commissioner Henry stated that the board needs to be transparent with each other when 
making decisions.  
 
Business Items:  
Item 1: FY23-001- Approval process for Phase 2 of Lakeview Estates:   Commissioner Ledford motioned to 
approve the FP23-001 for Phase 2 of Lakeview Estates. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
 
Item 2:  Ordinance Amendment to the Development Regulations and Zoning Ordinance to update 
definitions and Residential Zoning Districts designations:  Chairman Jernigan made a motion to approve the 
amendment passed by the P&Z Board on February 16th, He also request the P&Z Director to revisit the size of 
houses that may be built on one acre or less. These lots are existing non-conforming lots of record. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, pass unanimously.  
 
Item 3: Renewal of 2023 Alcohol License for Bear Creek Marina Restaurant: Commissioner Ledford motioned to 
approve the application number 2023-A-011 for Bear Creek Marina alcohol renewal. Commissioner Jernigan seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 4: Jasper County Recreation Board Appointment:  Mr. Johnson stated that he has worked with the 
school system and can be of assistance when it come field maintenance.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to appoint Jeremy Johnson to the Jasper County Recreation Board with his 
term ending October 2025. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 5: 2022 & 2023 LMIG Project- Jackson Lake Road from SR 11 to SR 212- Bid Results:  Mr. Benton 
stated that we have combined LMIG projects for 2022 & 2023. The bid prices for 2022 came back extremely 
high.  
 
Robert Jordan explained the current condition of the road; i.e. not same width and shoulder degradation. He 
stated that he thinks it was a good idea to hold off for a year. For the repairs there will be full-depth reclamation 
and the road will be made to be 22 ft. for the entire length of the repairs.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to award 2022 and 2023 LMIG Combined Funding Project to Pittman 
Construction Company in the amount of $1,846,351.10. The difference of $311,094.75 will come from 2018 
SPLOST. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

Item 6: Public Works Right of Way Mower – Bid Results: Mr. Walsh stated that they are down one mower. 
Seven bids were received. The one that is down is 18 years old. He recommends the mower from Atlantic 
Southern. There are some cheaper options but the delivery time is a lot longer.  
 
Commissioner Ledford motioned to purchase the Bush hog 2815 Flex-Wing Rotary Cutter from Atlantic 
Southern in the amount of $26,157.00 from impact fees. Commissioner Henry seconded the motion, passed 
unanimously.  
  
Item 7: Tree and Limb Debris Removal Services- Tornado Damage Area- Bid Results: Mr. Benton stated 
that there is a huge range in bids.  We would have to have really good reason to not go with the lowest bid if 
trying to get reimbursed from FEMA. The bids that were received are per cubic feet.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to award the tree and limb debris removal services for the tornado damaged area 
bid to CTC- Custom Tree Care for the amount of $5.98 per cubic yard. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the 
motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 8: Vehicle Quotes- Senior Center: Ms. Brenda Jacobs presented quotes for a new Senior Center vehicle 
to replace the 2009 van. All of the vehicles that are quoted would meet the needs of the Senior Center.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to approve the purchase of the 2012 Ford E-350 Chassis with 28,000 miles for 
$58,400 funded by Fund Balance once the vehicle is looked at by a Public Works mechanic. If we have to go 
with a different vehicle it will need to come back before the board for discussion. The funding will come from 
Fund Balance. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 9: Monticello Post Office- Handicap Accessibility- Letter to US Senators and Rep.: Commissioner 
Jernigan stated that he have problems going up and down the steps at the Monticello Post Office. He is 
suggesting that we write a letter to both Senators and Representative Collins to see what they can do to help get 
this remedied.  
 
Commissioner Jernigan made a motion that we write a letter to both Senators and Representative Collins to 
address the need for an ADA compliant Post Office. We will suggest that City of Monticello writes a separate 
letter. If they do not prepare a letter we will suggest that they sign our letter. Commissioner Ledford seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 10: Application for Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) Request for FY 2024- Recreation 
Park Improvements: Mr. Benton stated that staff was ask to completing the CDS request. The grant is zero 
match.  
 
Commissioner Henry motioned to approve the request to submit FY 2024 Congressional Directed Spending 
Request. Commissioner Jernigan seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 11: ACCG Georgia County Internship Program Grant Agreement:  Mr. Benton stated that we have 
had success in the past when we applied for this program. We put in a grant application and won it. This is a 
reimbursement grant.  
 
Commissioner Jones motioned to authorize Chairman to sign the agreement for the Georgia County Internship 
Program Grant. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 
Item 12: Vehicle Quotes- County Manager Vehicle:  Chairman Jernigan motioned to approve the purchase of 
the 2023 Ford Explorer Stock# 23T140 for $39,569 from Riverside Ford as the county manager vehicle. 
Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.  
 



Jasper County Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes March 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting  
 

Item 13: Human Resources and County Boards Report:  Ms. Sheila Belcher presented the Jasper County 
Human Resources and Board reports.  
 
Current Open Positions 
Deputy Clerk  
Code Enforcement Officer 
Operator I 
CDL Driver 
EMT 
Paramedics 
911 Dispatchers 
Public Works/Landfill Operator 
 
New Hires/Transfers 
Public Works – 2 
Recreation – Full-Time – 1 
Recreation – Part-Time - 1 
 

 
Terminations/Resignations 
Sheriff – 1 
Jail – 1 
Recreation – 1 
Planning & Zoning - 1 
 
Total Employees = 160 
Full-time = 109 
Part-time = 51 
 
Upcoming Board Appointments Needed:  
Jasper County Recreation Board: 1 
Jasper County Public Facilities Authority - 4 
 

Item 15: Monticello Food Bank: Commissioner Henry stated that the funding for the Food Bank has been 
released. He would like to us move the money in order to close on the land.  
 
Mr. Ken Horton stated that we need to have on record the name that NEGRC have. To make sure that we are 
able to sign for the grant, find a closing attorney. 
 
Commissioner Henry made the motion that we pull the $77K plus any closing fee from fund balance, it will be 
reimbursed by the CDBG grant. Commissioner Ledford seconded the motion, passed unanimously.    
 
Item 14: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed: The commissioners decided that no 
additional Work Sessions are currently needed.  
 
County Attorney Items: None  
 
County Manager Update: Mike Benton gave an updated of the numbers for building permits for the current 
year in comparison to the past year.  
 
Executive Session: 
None 
 
Adjourn: Commissioner Ledford motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:09 p.m. Commissioner Henry seconded 
the motion, passed unanimously. 
 

___________________________ 

Don Jernigan, Chairman 
 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Robinson, Clerk       



 

 
Consent Agenda – Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date: April 3, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approval of Check Register 
 
 
Summary: 
 
A check register will be generated by the finance department on meeting day for signature and approval to 
process the checks. 
 
Background: 
 
Cost:  $0 
 
 
Recommended Motion: 
 
Approve processing of check #’s 67164 - 67407  
  
 
 
  



 
 

Business Item 1: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Public Facilities Authority 
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: Jasper County Public Facilities Authority – Board Appointments 
  
 
 
Jasper County’s Public Facilities Authority was established by the Jasper County Board of Commissioners 
and approved by act by the Georgia General Assembly. The Public Facilities Authority is comprised of five 
(5) members who shall be residents of Jasper County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 
Commissioner of Jasper County. The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of 
one (1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors have been selected and appointed. 
 
The Board of Commissioners staff advertised for applicants for the Public Facilities Authority Board. The 
Board needs to appoint a Commissioner Representative and 3 citizens.  
 
The following persons have submitted application to serve on the Jasper County Public Facilities Board: 
 
Don Jernigan  
Hal Harris 
James Thiele 
William Nash 
Howard Fore, Jr.  
 
Background:  
 
The Jasper County Public Facilities Authority was created for the purpose of promoting the public good and 
wellbeing of the citizens of Jasper County. The Authority has the ability to enable financing to provide long term 
capital projects including facilities, equipment and services within Jasper County. 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board’s Discretion 
 
  









JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
 

 

126 W. Greene St. Ste. 18, Monticello, GA 31064 
706-468-4900 

www.jaspercountyga.org 
 

 
 

 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS, COMMITTEES, & AUTHORITIES 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
TELEPHON E (home) __________________________________________ 

 
   (Cell)________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Email address_____________________________________ 
 
 
 
   

Signature Date 
 

*This application should be submitted to the Jasper County Board of Commissioners, 
email: srobinson@jaspercountyga.org  
US Mail: Jasper County Board of Commissioners, ATTN: Sharon S. Robinson 
 (use address above) Any additional information may be included on a separate page. 
 
 
NOTE: Information provided on this form is subject to disclosure as a public record under Georgia 
Open Records Law.  

Hal Harris

399 old Agateville Road Hillsboro GA 31038

404-277-8057

hal@samplebook.com

Hal Harris
3 -15-23

http://www.jaspercountyga.org/
mailto:srobinson@jaspercountyga.org


    

  

Applicant Name: __________________________   Date: __________________ 
 
I would like to apply for appointment to the following Board, Committee, or Authority: 

 
  

 
 
How long have you been a resident of Jasper County? 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Which Jasper County district do you live in?  
 
                    _____ (1)          _____ (2)          _____ (3)          _____ (4)           _____ (5)   
 
 
What qualifications, experience, and certifications do you possess that should be considered for 
 the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on?  
 
 

 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Are you currently serving on another Board, Committee, Authority or elected position?                                         
____ Yes     _____ NO     If Yes, please list.  
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

Would there be any possible conflict of interest between your employment, your family, or your 
serving on the Board, Committee, or Authority you are seeking appointment on? 

  ____ Yes    _____ NO     If Yes, please explain.  
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Public Facilities Authority

49 years

x

I am a business owner in Jasper county and currently serve on the JPA

X

Jasper County Public Facilities Authority

x

Hal Harris 3-15-23



What is your vision for the county’s future in relation to the Board, Committee, or 
Authority you are seeking appointment on? 
 
 

 

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Explain your understanding of the duties of this Board, Committee, or Authority:  
 
 
 

 

 
 
Briefly explain why you seek appointment to this Board, Committee, or Authority:  
 
 

 

 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Are you in any way related to a County Elected Official or County Employee? If so, please describe. 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
If appointed, I agree to serve and participate in required and or voluntary training.  ____Yes   _____ No 
 

 
 
 
 
    

Signature Application Date 
 

I would like to help the county continue to grow and develop in a postive manner.

The JCPFA responsibility is to provide financing for projects for the varoius government
 
within Jasper county

NO

X

Hal Harris

Having already served two years, I would like to help the county move forward with projects we have gotten started.

3-15-23



















 
Business Item 2: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Senior Center   
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: NEGRC Area on Aging 2023 American Rescue Plan (ARPA) Contract – Senior Center 
 
 
Summary:  
 
In order to follow the Older Americans Act as a contractor for service delivery of Title 3B Supportive Services, 
Title 3C-1 Congregate Meals, and Title 3C-2 Home Delivered Meals, the Jasper County Senior Center is 
requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve to receive funds in the amount of $39,287.88 from the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. 
In addition, the Jasper County Senior Center will ensure accurate data collection into the DAS Data System and 
maintain appropriate/accurate financial tracking and recording keeping of all allocated funds from ARPA—
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. 
 
The breakdown of funding is as follows: 

• ARPA Congregate Meals CMC6; $9.57:            $   7,619.99 
• ARPA Home Delivered Meals HDC6; $9.15:    $ 24,176.89 
• ARPA Supportive Services SSC6; $2.55:            $   7,500.00 

                                                                               ------------------ 
Total ARPA Funding:                                                          $ 39,287.88 
 
Background:  
 
     The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)—signed into law 2021, provided funding to the Older Americans 
Act (OAA). This funding provides funding for meals, caregiver services, wellness services, supportive services; 
COVID19 vaccinations outreach, including education, communication, transportation, and other activities to 
facilitate vaccinations of older individuals.  
 
In addition, funding is also included to address isolation among older individuals, including activities for 
investments in technological equipment and solution strategies aimed at alleviating negative health effects of 
social isolation due to long-term stay-at-home recommendations for older individuals for the duration of the 
COVID-19 public health emergency. 
 
Cost:  
 
Recommended Motion:   
Authorize Chairman to execute the Contract 
  















































 
 

Business Item 3: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Jasper County Senior Center 
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject:  Senior Center 2009 Ford E-350 Van Replacement Vehicle 
 
Summary:  
The Jasper County Senior Center is requesting that the BOC moves to purchase 2016 Bus with wheelchair lifts 
for $71,500 or 2019 Bus for $86,585—No wheelchair lifts. 
The vehicles are located in Tennessee and currently a hold has been put on the 2016 until Friday— 
March 31, 2023; 2:00pm. 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
At the March 6, 2023 BOC meeting, the Jasper County Senior Center was approved to purchase 2012 for 
$58,400 or a 2017 for $75,750. Unfortunately, both vehicles were already sold after contacting the dealership on 
that following Tuesday.  
 
After many discussions with The Bus Center, we have located 2 more buses for purchase. 2016--$71,500 and 
2019 for $86,585.  
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
2016 Starcraft AllStar – 40K miles - $71,500 (wheel chair lift) 
2019 Starcraft Starlite – 30K miles - $86,585 (no wheel chair lift) 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Board’s Discretion 
  



OPTIONS INCLUDED

UPLOAD MODEL IMAGE

Page 1 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

12 Passengers + Driver
+ 2 Wheelchairs

Chassis and Body Specifications

Ford E-350 Chassis
6.8L V-10 Gas Engine
12,500# GVWR
158” Wheelbase
23’ Body
96” Wide
Dual Rear Wheels
ABS Hydraulic Brakes
225 Amp Alternator
40 Gallon Fuel Tank
Cruise Control & Tilt Steering Wheel
Automatic Transmission
OEM Dash AC
LED Interior & Exterior Lights
White Step Nosing
Protective Rust Inhibitor Applied Underneath Bus

Interior

Exterior

FRP Walls & Ceiling
Ceiling Grab Rail on Driver Side
Dual Grab Rails Parallel to Entry Steps
Stanchion & Modesty Panel at Pass Entry

Stainless Steel Wheel Inserts
Valve Stem Extenders for Inner Rear Wheels
Mud Flaps
LED Rear Center Mount Brake Light

Stock #: T-4215
1 Unit in Stock

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

2016 Starcraft AllStar - 40,000 miles

March 7, 2023



OPTIONS INCLUDED

Sales Rep. Signature:

Date:

PRICING:

Est. LEASE Pmt.
Est. FINANCE Pmt.

Customer Signature:
Terms and Conditions:

Page 2 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

(FOB Acworth,GA)

$ 74,500
$ 3,000

$ 71,500
$ 1,028
$ 1,396

Seating

Freedman Shield Driver Seat

Climate Control

70,000 BTU Rear AC System (Trans-Air)

ADA / Paratransit

Flooring

Gerflor Non-Slip Safety Flooring (black)

Luggage

Driver's Storage Compartment

Electrical
LED Dome Lights

Audio / Video Equipment
Deluxe AM/FM/CD Player

Safety
First Aid Kit, Fire Extinguisher, & Safety Triangles

Factory Warranties

Doors & Windows

36” Wide Electric Passenger Entry Door

Additional Options (NOT Included in Pricing)

65,000 BTU Rear Heater

White Step Nosing

Door Activated Interior Lights

Back Up Alarm

Doc Fee - $250.00
GA TAVT $4719.00
Delivery - Included

Double Wheelchair Lift Doors in Rear of Bus
Braun Century Wheelchair Lift (800#)
(2) Q-Straint Deluxe Retractor Tie-Down Kits
Storage Pouches for Tie-Downs
ADA Priority Seating & Wheelchair Signage

Freedman Mid-Back Passenger Seats
Anti-Vandal Grab Handles
Level 1 Grey Vinyl Upholstery
2pt Seatbelts
Armrests

$ 0
(Vehicle Description)

Unit Price

Less Rebates & Discounts
Less Trade Value

Total Price

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

60
60

*Lease and Finance
payment based on $0 down
+ $400 Doc Fee, upon credit
approval. Lease based off of
15k miles per year.

20% Deposit Required to Hold Unit. All quotes valid
for 30 days. All stock units are subject to prior sale.
Price or Payments do not include tax, license,
or delivery unless stated.

March 7, 2023



DETAIL IMAGE 1

DETAIL IMAGE 3

DETAIL IMAGE 5

DETAIL IMAGE 2

DETAIL IMAGE 4

DETAIL IMAGE 6

Page 3 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

Images

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

March 7, 2023



Page 4 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

Floor Plan

Trade Information

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

March 7, 2023



OPTIONS INCLUDED

UPLOAD MODEL IMAGE

Page 1 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

14 Passengers +
Driver

Chassis and Body Specifications

Ford Transit T-350 Chassis
3.7L V-6 Gas Engine
10,360# GVWR
158” Wheelbase
20’ Body
84” Wide
Dual Rear Wheels
ABS Hydraulic Brakes
225 Amp Alternator
25 Gallon Fuel Tank
Automatic Transmission
OEM Dash AC
Interior Dome Lights
Protective Rust Inhibitor Applied Underneath Bus

Interior

Exterior

Padded Vinyl Walls & Ceiling (gray)
Stanchion & Modesty Panel at Pass Entry
Dual Grab Rails Parallel to Entry Steps

Stainless Steel Wheel Inserts
Valve Stem Extenders for Inner Rear Wheels

Unit# T-1755
1 Unit in Stock

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

Pre-Owned 2019 Starcraft Starlite - 30K Miles

March 7, 2023



OPTIONS INCLUDED

Sales Rep. Signature:

Date:

PRICING:

Customer Signature:
Terms and Conditions:

Page 2 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

(FOB Acworth,GA)

$ 88,985
$ 2,400

$ 86,585

Seating

Re-Upholstered Driver Seat to Match Passenger Seats

Climate Control

60,000 BTU Rear AC System

ADA / Paratransit

Flooring

Gerflor Non-Slip Safety Flooring (grey)

Luggage

Electrical
Interior Dome Lights

Audio / Video Equipment
Deluxe AM/FM/CD Player

Safety
First Aid Kit, Fire Extinguisher, & Safety Triangles

Doors & Windows

36” Wide Electric Passenger Entry Door

Additional Options (NOT Included in Pricing)

65,000 BTU Rear Heater

Tinted T-Slider Passenger Windows
Rear Window

Door Activated Interior Lights

(4)Upgraded Speakers

Back Up Alarm
Evergency Escape Exits
Interior Convex Driver Mirror
Rear Back Up Camera

Custom Lettering & Logo - $550
Delivery - Included
Full Body Paint (any single color) - $6,500
Doc Fee - $250.00
GA TAVT $5714.61

This Unit is Not ADA Accessible

Freedman Mid-Back Passenger Seats
Level 5 Cloth Upholstery
Aisle Side Armrests
2pt Seatbelts

Unit Price

Dealer Discount

Total Price

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

*Est. Lease and Finance
payments based on $0 down
+ $400 Doc Fee, upon credit
approval. Lease based off of
12k miles per year.

20% Deposit Required to Hold Unit. All quotes valid
for 30 days. All stock units are subject to prior sale.
Price or Payments do not include tax, license,
or delivery unless stated.

March 7, 2023



DETAIL IMAGE 1

DETAIL IMAGE 3

DETAIL IMAGE 5

DETAIL IMAGE 2

DETAIL IMAGE 4

DETAIL IMAGE 6

Page 3 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

Images

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

March 7, 2023



Page 4 of 4

P R O P O S A L E X C L U S I V E LY F O R :

PREPARED BY

Proposal Date:

Floor Plan

Additional Information

Jasper County Senior Center

(404) 805-9657

M. Rahman
Commercial Bus Sales

Atlanta, GA
mrahman@thebuscenter.com

March 7, 2023



 
 

Business Item 4: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department: Finance   
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: Participation Forms for Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart  

(collectively the “New Opioid Settlements”) 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Five new national opioid settlements have been reached with Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart 
(collectively the “New Opioid Settlements”).  The state of Georgia has elected to participate in the “New Opioid 
Settlements”.  As a result, new agreements must be signed to participate in the new settlements.  The deadline to 
return the required documentation is April 18, 2023.  
 
 
Background:  
 
Jasper County received National Opioid Settlements Revenue of $32,919.74 on January 13, 2023 from the 
National Distributor related to Janssen Settlements.  The Participation Forms for the New Opioid Settlements 
are substantially similar to the Participation Forms previously signed to participate in the National Distributor 
and Janssen Settlements. 
 
Cost:  
$0  
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Board directs the Chairman to execute the requisite Participation Forms for Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, 
and Walmart (collectively the “New Opioid Settlements”) prior to April 18, 2023 deadline. 
  



 

 

Andrew J. Hill III 
Email address:  ahill@bbga.com   
 
March 2, 2023 

 
Via Email 
 

 
Re:  In Re: National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL 2804 
   
   
Dear Client:   

 
We are writing to you regarding the five new national opioid settlements that have been 

reached with Defendants Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Wal-Mart (collectively the 
“New Opioid Settlements”).  The settlement agreements for the New Opioid Settlements, 
which are attached to this letter for your review, total approximately $20 billion.   

 
On February 1, 2023, you should have received a DocuSign email titled “Action 

Required: Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, Walmart National Opioid Settlements” from 
Rubris, the Opioids Implementation Administrator, with Participation Forms to participate 
in the New Opioid Settlements.  The DocuSign email was sent from dse_NA3@docusign.net.  
Rubris also sends emails directly from opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.  Attached to this 
letter are examples of the Participation Forms that Rubris sent.  The Participation Forms for 
the New Opioid Settlements are substantially similar to the Participation Forms your 
subdivision signed to participate in the National Distributor and Janssen Settlements (your 
subdivision recently received payments from the National Distributor and Janssen 
Settlements).   

 
For the same reasons we recommended your subdivision participate in the National 

Distributor and Janssen Settlements, we recommend your subdivision participate in the New 
Opioid Settlements.  The New Opioid Settlements have overwhelming support nationwide 
and within the State of Georgia, including from Attorney General Chris Carr and attorneys 
representing other Georgia subdivisions.  Further, participating in the New Opioid 
Settlements is the best way to ensure your subdivision receives a recovery from the settling 
Defendants (there is the risk of state legislated litigation bars and/or defendant bankruptcies), 
maximizes its recovery from the settling Defendants, receives payments and resources sooner 
rather than later, and is not on the outside looking in.      

 

mailto:ahill@bbga.com
mailto:dse_NA3@docusign.net
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


 
 
March 2, 2023  
Page 2 

 

 

We also recommend that you wait to sign the Participation Forms for the New Opioid 
Settlements.  We (along with counsel for other Georgia subdivisions) are advising our clients to 
wait to sign the Participation Forms because we are still in the process of reaching a Memorandum 
of Understanding (“MOU”) with the State of Georgia regarding the New Opioid Settlements.  As 
was the case with the National Distributor and Janssen Settlements, the purpose of having a MOU 
in place for the New Opioid Settlements is to maximize the funds available under the settlements 
and to control how funds from the settlements are allocated between the State of Georgia and 
Georgia’s subdivisions.   

 
We anticipate that the terms of the MOU for the New Opioid Settlements will be identical 

in all material respects to the MOU the State of Georgia and Georgia’s subdivisions entered for 
the National Distributor and Janssen Settlements.  Namely, we anticipate that the MOU for the 
New Opioid Settlements will contain the same allocation percentages:  

 
• The State of Georgia receives 75% of the settlement funds 

o The State of Georgia must expend at least 40% of its share of the settlement 
funds on a regional basis, which inures to the benefit of all Georgians  

 
• Participating Georgia subdivisions receive 25% of the settlement funds  

o If a participating county has a litigating sheriff, the county must allocate at least 
9.45% of its settlement funds to the sheriff  

o If a participating county has a litigating hospital, the county must allocate at 
least 2% of its settlement funds to the hospital  

o If a participating county has a litigating school district, the county must allocate 
at least 1% of its settlement funds to the school district  

A copy of the MOU for the National Distributor and Janssen Settlements is attached for your 
review.  Your subdivision executed Exhibit 1 to the MOU, the Acknowledgement and Agreement 
To Be Bound By Memorandum of Understanding, alongside the National Distributor and Janssen 
Participation Forms, when it joined the National Distributor and Janssen Settlements in 2021. 
 
  Although the MOU for the New Opioid Settlements has not been finalized yet, the 
deadline to participate in the New Opioid Settlements – April 18, 2023 – is fast approaching.  
Accordingly, we strongly recommend that your subdivision approve the (anticipated) MOU 
and agree to participate in the New Opioid Settlements at your next Board of Commissioners 
or City Council Meeting.  We also suggest that you appoint an individual – preferably the 
individual who received the DocuSign email from Rubris with the Participation Forms – as 
the individual authorized to execute the (anticipated) MOU acknowledgment and complete 
the Participation Forms for the New Opioid Settlements.  This will ensure that the necessary 
documents can be executed quickly once the MOU is finalized.   
 
 By March 10, 2023, please send an email to Julie Boyer at jboyer@bbga.com with the 
date of the meeting where your subdivision plans to discuss approving the (anticipated) MOU 
and participating in the New Opioid Settlements.  After that meeting, please email Ms. Boyer 
the name and contact information of the individual your subdivision has appointed to execute 

mailto:jboyer@bbga.com


 
 
March 2, 2023  
Page 3 

 

 

the (anticipated) MOU acknowledgment and complete the Participation Forms for the New 
Opioid Settlements.   
 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.    
 

Sincerely, 
 
  /s/ Andrew J. Hill III 
 
  Andrew J. Hill III 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



New National Opioids Settlements: Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and Walmart
Opioids Implementation Administrator
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com

Jasper County, GA
Reference Number: CL-383884

TO LOCAL POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS AND SPECIAL DISTRICTS:
 

THIS PACKAGE CONTAINS DOCUMENTATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NEW
NATIONAL OPIOID SETTLEMENTS. YOU MUST TAKE ACTION IN ORDER TO

PARTICIPATE.

Deadline: April 18, 2023

Five new proposed national opioid settlements (“New National Opioid Settlements”)
have  been  reached  with  Teva,  Allergan,  CVS,  Walgreens,  and  Walmart
(“Settling Defendants”). This Participation Package is a follow-up communication to
the  Notice of National Opioid Settlements  recently received electronically by your
subdivision or special district (“subdivision”). 

You are receiving this Participation Package because Georgia is participating in the
following settlements:

 Teva
 Allergan
 CVS
 Walgreens
 Walmart

If a state does not participate in a particular Settlement, the subdivisions in that
state are not eligible to participate in that Settlement.

This electronic envelope contains: 

 Participation  Forms for  Teva,  Allergan,  CVS,  Walgreens,  and  Walmart,
including a release of any claims. 

The  Participation Form  for  each  settlement must  be  executed,  without
alteration, and submitted on or before April 18, 2023, in order for your
subdivision  to  be  considered  for  initial  participation  calculations  and
payment eligibility. 

Based upon subdivision participation forms received on or before April  18th, the
subdivision participation rate will  be used to determine whether participation for
each deal is sufficient for the settlement to move forward and whether a state earns
its  maximum potential  payment  under  the  settlement.  If  the  settlement  moves
forward, your release will become effective. If a settlement does not move forward,
that release will not become effective. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com


Any subdivision that does  not participate cannot directly share in the settlement
funds, even if the subdivision’s state is settling and other participating subdivisions
are sharing in settlement funds. Any subdivision that does not participate may also
reduce the amount of money for programs to remediate the opioid crisis in its state.
Please note, a subdivision will not necessarily directly receive settlement funds by
participating; decisions on how settlement funds will be allocated within a state are
subject to intrastate agreements or state statutes.

You are encouraged to discuss the terms and benefits of the New National Opioid
Settlements with your counsel, your Attorney General’s Office, and other contacts
within your state. Many states are implementing and allocating funds for these new
settlements the same as they did for the prior opioid settlements with McKesson,
Cardinal,  Amerisource,  and  J&J/Janssen,  but  states  may  choose  to  treat  these
settlements differently.

Information  and documents  regarding the  New National  Opioid Settlements and
how they are being implemented in your  state  and how funds will  be allocated
within your  state allocation can be found on the national  settlement website at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/. This  website  will  be  supplemented  as
additional documents are created. 

How to return signed forms:

There are three methods for returning the executed  Participation Forms and any
supporting documentation to the Implementation Administrator:

(1) Electronic  Signature  via  DocuSign:  Executing  the  Participation  Forms
electronically  through  DocuSign  will  return  the  signed  forms  to  the
Implementation  Administrator  and  associate  your  forms  with  your
subdivision’s records.  Electronic signature is the most efficient method for
returning Participation Forms, allowing for more timely participation and the
potential  to  meet  higher  settlement payment thresholds,  and is  therefore
strongly encouraged. 

(2) Manual  Signature  returned  via  DocuSign:  DocuSign  allows  forms  to  be
downloaded,  signed  manually,  then  uploaded  to  DocuSign  and  returned
automatically  to  the  Implementation  Administrator.  Please  be  sure  to
complete all fields. As with electronic signature, returning manually signed
Participation Forms via DocuSign will associate your signed forms with your
subdivision’s records.

(3) Manual Signature returned via electronic mail: If your subdivision is unable to
return  executed  Participation  Forms using  DocuSign,  signed  Participation
Forms may  be  returned  via  electronic  mail  to
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.  Please  include  the  name,  state,  and
reference ID of your subdivision in the body of the email and use the subject
line Settlement Participation Forms – [Subdivision Name, Subdivision State] –
[Reference ID].

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


Detailed instructions on how to sign and return the Participation Forms, including 
changing the authorized signer, can be found at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com. You may also contact 
opioidsparticipation@rubris.com.

The sign-on period for subdivisions ends on April 18, 2023.

If you have any questions about executing these forms, please contact your 
counsel, the Implementation Administrator at opioidsparticipation@rubris.com, or 
Christine Hom at the Georgia Attorney General’s Office at (404) 458-3867 or 
chom@law.ga.gov. 

Thank you, 
 
National Opioids Settlements Implementation Administrator

The  Implementation  Administrator  is retained  to  provide  the  settlement  notice
required by the respective settlement agreements referenced above and to manage
the collection of settlement participation forms for each settlement.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

mailto:chom@law.ga.gov
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
mailto:opioidsparticipation@rubris.com
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


EXHIBIT         K      
Subdivision     and     Special     District     Settlement         Participation         Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation forms for the Allergan and
Teva Settlements at this time?

[  ] Yes_ta   [  ] No_ta

Governmental Entity: Jasper County State: GA
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_teva_allergan/
Address 1: /address1_teva_allergan/
Address 2: /address2_teva_allergan/
City, State, Zip: /cit_ta/                                     /state_ta/                       /zi_ta/
Phone: /phone_teva_allergan/
Email: /email_teva_allergan/

The  governmental  entity  identified  above  (“Governmental  Entity”),  in  order  to  obtain  and  in
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Agreement dated
November 22, 2022 (“Allergan Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized official,
hereby elects to participate in the Allergan Settlement, release all Released Claims against all Released
Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Allergan Settlement, understands
that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that
by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Allergan Settlement as
provided therein.

2. Following the execution of this Settlement Participation Form, the Governmental Entity shall
comply  with  Section  III.B  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  regarding  Cessation  of  Litigation
Activities.

3. The Governmental Entity shall, within fourteen (14) days of the Reference Date and prior to
the filing of the Consent Judgment, file a request  to dismiss  with prejudice any Released
Claims  that  it  has  filed.  With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re  National
Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes the MDL
Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation of  Dismissal  With Prejudice substantially  in the form found at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

4. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  pertaining  to
Subdivisions and Special Districts as defined therein.

5. By  agreeing  to  the  terms  of  the  Allergan  Settlement  and  becoming  a  Releasor,  the
Governmental  Entity is  entitled  to  the  benefits  provided  therein,  including,  if  applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

6. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Allergan Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


7. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided
in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Allergan Settlement.

8. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Allergan Settlement as provided therein.

9. The  Governmental  Entity, as a  Participating  Subdivision  or  Participating  Special  District,
hereby becomes a Releasor for all  purposes in  the Allergan Settlement, including,  but  not
limited to, all provisions of Section V (Release),  and along with all departments, agencies,
divisions,  boards, commissions, Subdivisions,  districts,  instrumentalities  of any  kind  and
attorneys, and any person in their official capacity whether elected or appointed to serve any of
the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or through any of  the
foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor, provides for a release to
the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental Entity hereby absolutely,
unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist in
bringing, or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability
for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in any forum whatsoever.  The releases
provided for in the Allergan Settlement are intended to be broad and shall be interpreted so as
to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way
to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to
release claims. The Allergan Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim.

10. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision or Participating Special District as set forth in the Allergan Settlement.

11. In connection with the releases provided for in the Allergan Settlement, each Governmental
Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and
benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction,
or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor
at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors  do  not  know  or  suspect  to  exist,  whether  through  ignorance,  oversight, error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Allergan Settlement.

12. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Allergan Settlement, to
which the Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this  Settlement Participation
Form is  interpreted  differently from the  Allergan  Settlement  in  any  respect,  the  Allergan
Settlement controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Settlement Participation Form on behalf 
of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_teva_allergan/                            

Name: /name_1_teva_allergan/                               

Title: /title_1_teva_allergan/                                 

Date: /date_1_teva_allergan/                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



Exhibit         K      
Subdivision     and     Special     District     Settlement         Participation         Form      

Governmental Entity: Jasper County State: GA
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_teva_allergan/
Address 1: /address1_teva_allergan/
Address 2: /address2_teva_allergan/
City, State, Zip: /cit_ta/                                     /state_ta/                       /zi_ta/
Phone: /phone_teva_allergan/
Email: /email_teva_allergan/

The  governmental  entity identified above  (“Governmental  Entity”), in  order  to obtain  and  in
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant  to the Agreement
dated November 22, 2022 (“Teva Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized
official, hereby elects to participate in the Teva Settlement, release all Released Claims against all
Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Teva Settlement, understands that
all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that by
this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Teva Settlement as provided
therein.

2. Following the execution of this Settlement Participation Form, the Governmental Entity shall
comply with Section III.B of the Teva Settlement regarding Cessation of Litigation Activities.

3. The Governmental Entity shall, within 14 days of the Reference Date and prior to the filing of
the Consent Judgment, file a request to dismiss with prejudice any Released Claims that it has
filed.  With respect  to any Released Claims pending in In re National  Prescription Opiate
Litigation,  MDL No.  2804,  the  Governmental  Entity  authorizes  the  Plaintiffs’ Executive
Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a Stipulation of Dismissal
With Prejudice substantially in the form found at https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

4. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Teva  Settlement  pertaining  to
Subdivisions as defined therein.

5. By agreeing to the terms of the Teva Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, monetary payments
beginning after the Effective Date.

6. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Teva Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

7. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided
in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Teva Settlement.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


8. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Teva Settlement as provided therein.

9. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision or Participating Special  District,
hereby becomes a Releasor for all purposes in the Teva Settlement, including but not limited
to all provisions of Section V (Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions,
boards, commissions, districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in
their official capacity elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency,
person,  or  other entity claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity
identified in  the  definition of  Releasor, provides  for  a  release  to  the  fullest  extent  of  its
authority.  As a Releasor, the Governmental  Entity hereby absolutely,  unconditionally,  and
irrevocably covenants not to bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought,
filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against
any  Released  Entity  in  any  forum  whatsoever.  The  releases  provided  for  in  the  Teva
Settlement are intended by Released Entitles and the Governmental Entity to be broad and
shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar against any
liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the power of
the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Teva Settlement shall be a complete bar to
any Released Claim.

10. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision or Participating Special District as set forth in the Teva Settlement.

11. In connection with the releases provided for in the Teva Settlement, each Governmental Entity
expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and benefits
conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction, or
principle  of  common law,  which  is  similar, comparable,  or  equivalent  to  § 1542  of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims
that the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in
his or her favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by
him or her, would have materially affected his or her settlement with
the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors do not know or suspect  to exist, whether through  ignorance,  oversight,  error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Teva Settlement.

12. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Teva Settlement, to which
Governmental  Entity  hereby  agrees.  To  the  extent  this  Election  and  Release  is  interpreted
differently from the Teva Settlement in any respect, the Teva Settlement controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Election and Release on behalf of the 
Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_teva_allergan/                            

Name: /name_1_teva_allergan/                               

Title: /title_1_teva_allergan/                                 

Date: /date_1_teva_allergan/                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation     and     Release     Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the CVS 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_cv   [  ] No_cv

Governmental Entity: Jasper County State: GA
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_cvs/
Address 1: /address1_cvs/
Address 2: /address2_cvs/
City, State, Zip: /cit_cv/                                   /state_cv/                     /zi_cv/
Phone: /phone_cvs/
Email: /email_cvs/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in
consideration  for  the  benefits  provided  to  the  Governmental  Entity  pursuant  to  the  Settlement
Agreement dated December 9, 2022 (“CVS Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned authorized
official, hereby elects to participate in the CVS Settlement, release all Released Claims against all
Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the CVS Settlement, understands that all
terms in this Participation and Release Form have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that
by executing this Participation and Release Form, the Governmental Entity elects to participate
in the CVS Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein.

2. The Governmental  Entity shall  promptly,  and in any event  no later  than 14 days after  the
Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any
Released  Claims  that  it  has  filed. With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes
the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation  of  Dismissal  with  Prejudice  substantially  in  the  form  found  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the CVS Settlement pertaining to Participating
Subdivisions as defined therein.

4. By agreeing to the terms of the CVS Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, monetary payments
beginning after the Effective Date.

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the CVS Settlement
solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided in,
and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the CVS Settlement. The Governmental
Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National Arbitration Panel as provided in, and for
resolving disputes to the extent otherwise provided in, the CVS Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the CVS Settlement as provided therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all
purposes  in  the  CVS Settlement,  including without  limitation all  provisions  of  Section XI
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected or
appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or
through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor,
provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity  hereby  absolutely,  unconditionally,  and  irrevocably  covenants  not  to  bring,  file,  or
claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to
establish  liability  for  any  Released  Claims  against  any  Released Entity in any forum
whatsoever. The releases provided for in the CVS Settlement are intended by the Parties to be
broad and shall  be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar
against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the
power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The CVS Settlement shall be a complete
bar to any Released Claim.

9. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision as set forth in the CVS Settlement.

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the CVS Settlement, each Governmental Entity
expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and benefits
conferred by any law of  any state or territory of  the United States  or  other jurisdiction,  or
principle  of  common law, which is similar, comparable,  or equivalent to  § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her
favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her would
have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released
party.

A Releasor  may hereafter  discover  facts  other  than  or  different  from those  which  it  knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental Entity
hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges, upon the
Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which Releasors do
not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no
fault  whatsoever,  and  which,  if  known,  would  materially  affect  the  Governmental  Entities’
decision to participate in the CVS Settlement.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the CVS Settlement, to which
Governmental  Entity  hereby  agrees. To  the  extent  this  Participation  and  Release  Form  is
interpreted differently from the CVS Settlement in any respect, the CVS Settlement controls.

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form on 
behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_cvs/                                            

Name: /name_1_cvs/                                               

Title: /title_1_cvs/                                                 

Date: /date_1_cvs/                                                 

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation     and     Release     Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the Walgreens 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_wg   [  ] No_wg

Governmental Entity: Jasper County State: GA
Authorized Signatory: /officialname_walgreens/
Address 1: /address1_ walgreens/
Address 2: /address2_ walgreens/
City, State, Zip: /cit_wg/                                    /state_wg/                       /zi_wg/
Phone: /phone_walgreens/
Email: /email_walgreens/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in
consideration  for  the  benefits  provided  to  the  Governmental  Entity  pursuant  to  the  Settlement
Agreement dated December 9, 2022 (“Walgreens Settlement”),  and acting through the undersigned
authorized  official,  hereby  elects  to  participate  in  the  Walgreens  Settlement,  release  all  Released
Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Walgreens Settlement, understands
that all terms in this Participation and Release Form have the meanings defined therein, and
agrees that by executing this Participation and Release Form, the Governmental Entity elects to
participate in the Walgreens Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided
therein.

2. The Governmental  Entity shall  promptly,  and in any event  no later  than 14 days after  the
Reference Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any
Released  Claims  that  it  has  filed. With  respect  to  any Released  Claims  pending in  In  re
National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes
the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a
Stipulation  of  Dismissal  with  Prejudice  substantially  in  the  form  found  at
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com.

3. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  the  terms  of  the  Walgreens  Settlement  pertaining  to
Participating Subdivisions as defined therein.

4. By  agreeing  to  the  terms  of  the  Walgreens  Settlement  and  becoming  a  Releasor,  the
Governmental  Entity  is  entitled  to  the  benefits  provided  therein,  including,  if  applicable,
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

5. The  Governmental  Entity  agrees  to  use  any  monies  it  receives  through  the  Walgreens
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental Entity’s
state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role as provided in,
and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  provided  in,  the  Walgreens  Settlement. The
Governmental  Entity  likewise  agrees  to  arbitrate  before  the  National  Arbitration  Panel  as
provided  in,  and  for  resolving  disputes  to  the  extent  otherwise  provided  in,  the  Walgreens
Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Walgreens Settlement as provided therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all
purposes in the Walgreens Settlement, including without limitation all provisions of Section XI
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected or
appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming by or
through any of the foregoing,  and any other entity identified in the definition of Releasor,
provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the Governmental
Entity  hereby  absolutely,  unconditionally,  and  irrevocably  covenants  not  to  bring,  file,  or
claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to otherwise seek to
establish  liability  for  any  Released  Claims  against  any  Released  Entity  in  any  forum
whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Walgreens Settlement are intended by the Parties
to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest possible bar
against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the full extent of the
power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Walgreens Settlement shall be a
complete bar to any Released Claim.

9. The  Governmental  Entity  hereby  takes  on  all  rights  and  obligations  of  a  Participating
Subdivision as set forth in the Walgreens Settlement.

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the Walgreens Settlement, each Governmental
Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and
benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other jurisdiction,
or principle of common law, which is  similar,  comparable,  or  equivalent  to § 1542 of the
California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor
at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her would have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows,
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges,
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which
Releasors  do  not  know  or  suspect  to  exist,  whether  through  ignorance,  oversight,  error,
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Walgreens Settlement.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Walgreens Settlement, to
which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Participation and Release Form
is  interpreted  differently  from  the  Walgreens  Settlement  in  any  respect,  the  Walgreens
Settlement controls.

I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation and Release Form on 
behalf of the Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_walgreens/                                 

Name: /name_1_walgreens/                                    

Title: /title_1_walgreens/                                       

Date: /date_1_walgreens/                                      

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



EXHIBIT     K      

Subdivision     Participation   Form      

Will your subdivision or special district be signing the settlement participation form for the Walmart 
Settlement at this time?

[  ] Yes_wm   [  ] No_wm

Governmental Entity: Jasper County State: GA
Authorized Official: /officialname_walmart/
Address 1: /address1_walmart/
Address 2: /address2_walmart/
City, State, Zip: /cit_wm/                                     /state_wm/                       /zi_wm/
Phone: /phone_walmart/
Email: /email_walmart/

The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in 
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement 
Agreement dated November 14, 2022 (“Walmart Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned 
authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Walmart Settlement, release all Released Claims
against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows.

1.  The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Walmart Settlement, understands 
that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees that 
by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Walmart Settlement and 
become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein.

2.  The Governmental Entity shall promptly, and in any event within 14 days of the Effective 
Date and prior to the filing of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any Released 
Claims that it has filed. With respect to any Released Claims pending in In re National 
Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804, the Governmental Entity authorizes the 
Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee to execute and file on behalf of the Governmental Entity a 
Stipulation of Dismissal With Prejudice substantially in the form found at 
https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/.

3.  The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Walmart Settlement pertaining to 
Subdivisions as defined therein.

4.  By agreeing to the terms of the Walmart Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, 
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date.

5.  The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Walmart 
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746

https://nationalopioidsettlement.com/


6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Walmart 
Settlement.

7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Walmart Settlement as provided 
therein.

8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all 
purposes in the Walmart Settlement, including but not limited to all provisions of Section X 
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts,
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected 
or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming 
by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of 
Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to 
bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to 
otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in 
any forum whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Walmart Settlement are intended by 
the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the broadest
possible bar against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend to the 
full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Walmart 
Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim.

9. In connection with the releases provided for in the Walmart Settlement, each 
Governmental Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all 
provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the 
United States or other jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, 
comparable, or equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads:

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that the 
creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the 
time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would have materially 
affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party.

A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows, 
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental 
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and discharges, 
upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such date but which 
Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, oversight, error, 
negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would materially affect the 
Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Walmart Settlement.

10. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Walmart Settlement, to 
which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Election and Release is 
interpreted differently from the Walmart Settlement in any respect, the Walmart Settlement 
controls.

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Election and Release on behalf of the 
Governmental Entity.

Signature: /signer_1_walmart/                                    

Name: /name_1_walmart/                                       

Title: /title_1_walmart/                                          

Date: /date_1_walmart/                                         

3

DocuSign Envelope ID: 7EC40163-5ED7-46E9-AED6-6B1FE9D70746



 
 
 

Business Item 5: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Recreation 
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: Recreation Department Football Fields Capacity Discussion 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Staff is seeking approval to meet with the Monticello Baptist Church for the purpose of discussing short term 
usage of Rose Bowl Field for the County Recreation Football Program. 
 
Staff is seeking approval to meet with the Jasper County Board of Education for the purpose of discussing short 
term usage of the parking lot behind Thomas Persons Hall to provide parking for County Recreation Football 
Program activities occurring at Rose Bowl Field. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
The County Recreation Football Program is in need of temporary football field capacity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Authorize Staff to meet with the Monticello Baptist Church to discuss short term usage of Rose Bowl Field and 
to meet with the Jasper County Board of Education to discuss short term usage of the parking lot behind 
Thomas Persons Hall for the purpose of providing additional capacity for County Recreation Football Program 
activities. 
  



 
 
 
 

Business Item 6: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Landfill 
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: Landfill Operations Discussion 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Jasper County has operated a Construction and Demolition Landfill since 2010. 
 
Historically, EPD has allowed non organic items to be placed into the C&D Landfill. 
 
New stringent Georgia EPD rules alters what is allowed to be placed into a C&D landfill. 
These new EPD rules regarding C&D landfills only allows waste derived from construction and demolition to 
be placed in the County C&D Landfill. 
 
Staff is working with Triple Point Engineering to modify County landfill operations regarding handling of non 
C&D waste in order to remain compliant with the new EPD rules. 
 
Staff recommends delaying any free dumping program until such time the County has implemented 
modifications for receiving non C&D waste per new EPD rules. 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
No Action Required. 
  



Business Item 7: 
 
Agenda Request – Jasper County BOC 
 
Department:  Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   April 3, 2023 
 
Subject: Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
  
 
 
Summary:  
 
Schedule Work Sessions and Called Meetings as Needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background:  
 
Schedule of Planned Work Sessions: 
 
Monday, April 24 6:00 P.M. FY 2024 Budget Draft Presentation 
Friday, April 28 9:00 A.M. FY 2024 Budget 
Friday, May 5  9:00 A.M. FY 2024 Budget 
Monday, May 15 6:00 P.M. FY 2024 Budget 
Friday, May 19 9:00 A.M. FY 2024 Budget 
Tuesday, May 30 6:00 P.M. FY 2024 Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cost:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended Motion:  
BOC Discretion 

 



 

JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JASPER COUNTY, GEORGIA 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET CALENDAR 
 

 

February 10   Letters to Appropriation Entities 

February 10   Budget Calendar Provided To Department Heads & Constitutional Officers 

March 3   Budget Templates – Delivered to Department Heads/Constitutional Officers  

March 10   Appropriation Requests Due Back to Finance Department   

March 24 Departmental/Enterprise/Constitutional Budget Requests Due Back to Finance 

Department 

March 31  Preliminary Digest from Tax Assessor 

March 27 – April 6 Department Heads & Constitutional Officers Budget Reviews 

(County Manager, Chief Accounting Officer, Department Heads & Constitutional 

Officers) 

April 6   County – Wide M & O Budget Rollup 

April 24   Work Session - Budget Presentation to BOC & Citizens 6 P.M. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 5 Board Consensus to Advertise - Proposed FY 2024 Budget, Proposed 2023 Millage 

Rates and 2023 Tax Digest Meeting 6:00 P.M. 
 

June 8 Advertise Public Hearings Dates and Locations, Proposed FY 2024 Budget, Proposed 

2023 Millage Rates, 2023 Tax Digest & Five Year Report 

 

June 12     Public Hearing – Proposed FY 2024 Budget, Proposed 2023 Millage Rates & 2023 Tax  

   Digest 10:00 A.M. 

 

June 12    Public Hearing – Proposed FY 2024 Budget, Proposed 2023 Millage Rates & 2023 Tax 

Digest 6:00 P.M. 
 

June 16  Called Meeting – Adopt FY 2024 Budget & Set 2023 Millage Rates 9:00 AM  

 

June 20  Post Adopted FY 2024 Budget & 2023 Millage Rates & 2023 Tax Digest & Implement FY  

   2024 Budget 

 

 

 

 

Budget Work Sessions for Board of Commissioners 
 

    Friday  April 28 9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.    

    Friday   May 5     9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M     

    Monday May 15     6:00 P.M.       

    Friday  May 19     9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M      

 Tuesday May 30 6:00 P.M.    

       

*Additional Work Sessions to be scheduled as needed 

  


	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA
	*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page.
	Agenda Detail 1 - Jasper County PFA Appointments.pdf
	Insert from: "PFA appointment. Harris.pdf"
	126 W. Greene St. Ste. 18, Monticello, GA 31064


	Insert from: "BOC  Regular Meeting Agenda April 3, 2023.pdf"
	MONTICELLO, GEORGIA
	*** The meeting will be live streamed Via Facebook on the Jasper County Georgia Facebook Page.


